1993

Michael r. Barker (In His Proper Person) v. Laura
Beth (Barker) McGillivray and the State of Utah,
Department of Human Services : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTION OF THE COURT

The Utah Court of Appeals has jurisdiction under the purview of the Utah Constitution, Article 1, Section 11.

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

1. Is Appellant's denial for demand for counsel in violation of Utah Constitution, Article 1, Sections 7, and 11?
2. Was Appellant denied due process of law when Utah State Department of Human Services failed to notice him that his children were receiving welfare assistance in violation of Utah Constitution, Article 1, Section 7 and U.C.A., 63-46b-3 requiring notification?
3. Was Appellant denied due process of law when the lower court failed to act upon a Motion for Relief of Judgment pursuant to Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 60 (b)?
4. Can Appellant be incarcerated in an attempt to punish or force him to obtain other employment in violation of Utah Constitution, Article 1, Section 1, and Article 26, Section 3 (3) and, U.C.A., 34-34-1, because his employment is not making what the Utah Department of Social Services or the Department of Human Services says is enough money?
5. Can U.C.A., 78-45-7.5 (5) (c), U.S.A., 78-45-7.5 (7) be used as the sole basis for determining that Mr. Barker is overemployed or underemployed in violation of his

rights guaranteed pursuant to Utah Constitution, Article 1, Section 1, and Article 1, Section 25, and U.C.A., 34-34-1?

6. Can the State of Utah Department of Social Services or the Department of Human Services deny Mr. Barker his right to continue in his farming occupation in violation of Utah Constitution, Article 12, Section 9 (which was law at the time)?

7. Can the State of Utah Department of Social Services or the Department of Human Services deny Mr. Barker his right to continue in his farming occupation in violation of Utah Constitution, Article 3, First?

8. Can the lower court determine that Mr. Barker is an absconding debtor without specific detailed findings by the court which would lead to that conclusion?

9. Can the lower court determine that Mr. Barker is an absconding debtor without sufficient specific facts proving intent to avoid child support payments?

10. Did the lower court disallow a material change of circumstances without specific detailed findings by the lower court which would arrive at that conclusion?

11. Can U.C.A., 78-45-7.5 (5) (c), 78-45-7.5 (7) (a) and (b) be used to impute income to Mr. Barker in violation of his rights guaranteed pursuant to Utah Constitution, Article 1, Section 1, Article 1, Section 25, Article 26, Section 3, and U.C.A., 34-34-1?

12. Can Mr. Barker be held to the same standards as an attorney licensed with the state of Utah when it results in a loss of his rights and it is not in the interest of justice?

13. Can the lower court "grandfather" Mr. Barker into the new child support

guidelines U.C.A., 78-45-7.2 through 78-45-18 in violation of his rights guaranteed pursuant to Utah Constitution, Article 1, Section 18?

14. Can the lower court require that Mr. Barker must break the law by neglecting his duty to support equally all of his children pursuant to Utah Constitution, Article 4, Section 1?

15. Can the lower court determine under U.C.A., 78-45-7.2 (5) that Mr. Barker must violate Utah Constitution, Article 4, Section 1, by neglecting his duty to support equally all of his children?

16. Can the lower court prevent Mr. Barker from honoring a contract with his present wife to provide for all of his children equally pursuant to Utah Constitution, Article 4, Section 1, in violation of Utah Constitution, Article 1, Section 18?

17. In this civil matter does U.C.A., 78-45-7.2 (5) violate Mr. Barker's rights pursuant to Utah Constitution, Article 1, Section 21 since he is being involuntarily forced to provide a higher standard of living to some of his children to the detriment of his other children?

18. Since Mr. Barker has met the threshold requirement for a material change of circumstances should his ex-wife be required to share in child support, if she is able, pursuant to U.C.A., 78-45-4?

19. Do U.C.A., 78-45-3, 78-45-4.1, and 78-45-4.3, require Mr. Barker to provide an unequal support to his non-welfare children in violation of Utah Constitution, Article 4, Section 1?

20. Does U.C.A., 78-45-7.2 (5) require Mr. Barker to provide an unequal

support to his non-welfare children in violation of Utah Constitution, Article 4, Section 1?

21. Can the lower court reverse a prior lower court finding that Mr. Barker is unable to pay child support and that he has purged a contempt charge?

22. Can the Utah Department of Social Services or the Department of Human Services cause a breach of contract between Mr. Barker and his ex-wife by providing her and the children with federal reserve notes and then disallow credit for Mr. Barker's greater tangible support substance that he has continually provided to them since they were married?

23. Can the Department of Social Services or the Department of Human Services hold Mr. Barker solely liable for a contract or instrument signed by his ex-wife over whom he has no direction or control pursuant to Uniform Commercial Code 70A-3-401 or other applicable law?

24. Can the Department of Social Services or the Department of Human Services hold Mr. Barker solely liable for a contract when pursuant to Uniform Commercial Code 70A-2-207 or other applicable law notification was given by him negating said instrument?

25. Can the Department of Social Services or the Department of Human Services impute to Mr. Barker a contract or instrument signed by his ex-wife over whom he has no direction or control and then subrogate that instrument to him? pursuant to Uniform Commercial Code 70A-3-401 or other applicable law?

26. Did Mr. Barker's ex-wife have an interest adverse to him when she

voluntarily increased her welfare benefit by selling a home for a fraction of its appraised value?

27. Did Mr. Barker's ex-wife sign a welfare contract in bad faith while she was being provided for with substance of a greater value by him in violation of U.C.A., 62A-11-101?

28. Did the lower court or the Utah Department of Social Services or the Department of Human Services cause Mr. Barker to become involuntarily insolvent pursuant to Uniform Commercial Code, 70A-1-203 (23) or other applicable law?

29. Did the Utah Department of Social Services or the Department of Human Services contribute to the increasing debt and subsequent insolvency of Mr. Barker by not allowing him credit for substance support "in kind"?

30. Is there evidence on the record of any notification to Mr. Barker by the Utah Department of Human Services that his children were receiving welfare?

31. Did the Utah Department of Social Services or the Department of Human Services fraud Mr. Barker when it held him liable for a contract without giving credit for support payments "in kind" since he was given no knowledge or opportunity to learn of the contract character or essential terms pursuant to Uniform Commercial Code 70A-3-305 or other applicable law?

32. Did the Utah Department of Social Services or the Department of Human Services loan credit or federal reserve note credit to Mr. Barker's ex-wife in violation of Utah Constitution, Article 6, Section 29?

33. Is Mr. Barker involuntarily insolvent since all of his tangible assets were

given to his ex-wife pursuant to Utah Commercial Code 70A-1-201 (23) or other applicable law?

34. Is Mr. Barker's ex-wife required to support her children, if she is able, pursuant to U.C.A., 78-45-4?

35. Did the Utah Department of Social Services or the Department of Human Services violate Utah Constitution, Article 1, Section 23 and attempt to hold Mr. Barker solely liable for a contract or instrument his ex-wife entered into while holding her immune?

36. Can the lower court abuse its discretion by finding Mr. Barker an absconding debtor without specific detailed findings on the record from which it arrived at that conclusion?

37. Can the lower court abuse its discretion and determine Mr. Barker is not a sovereign, non United States Constitution, 14th Amendment citizen without specific detailed findings on the record from which it arrived at that conclusion?

38. Can the attorneys of record violate Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 11 to the harm of Mr. Barker without sanctions being imposed when demanded?

39. Can Mr. Barker's ex-wife be considered pro se when the record proves that she enjoyed counsel by the Utah Department of Human Services attorney?

BRIEF OF APPELLANT

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal from a contempt of court and judgement of Appellant being an absconding debtor to avoid child support payments.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

In the spring of 1984 the Appellant, Mr. Barker and his wife, Laura McGillivray, one of the Appellee's, agreed to a Mexican divorce decree. Further written and oral agreements were entered into stipulating disposition of property and child visitation. Mr. Barker provided Laura with considerable support substance including a five bedroom home on 3 acres with water and animal outbuildings, a dairy goat herd, several head of sheep, a car, 8 tons of food storage, a great quantity of clothing storage for his children which could be used as they got older, and over 300 dollars per month.

In January of 1985, Appellee, Laura Signed up for welfare.

The Utah Department of Social Services would not stop providing assistance to Mr. Barkers children when he promptly notified them that the children were being provided for. Instead Mr. Barker was in turn notified by the Department that he would have to pay more money since no credit would be given for his "payment in kind" ie., the house, car, clothes, food, etc.

Laura moved out of the home after about a 6 months taking all except the animals thereby voluntarily increasing her housing costs. She continued to receive over 300

dollars every month for five years from Mr. Barker.

In 1987 a new Utah divorce decree was granted. Laura was awarded custody of the couples 4 natural children and her other child who Mr. Barker had adopted. Laura was awarded the home that Mr. Barker had provided from funds prior to the couples marriage. Laura sold the home for 60% of its appraised value and spent the money within 4 months.

Sometime later Social Services condemned her rented house on the basis that it was so filthy that it became a health hazard to the children. The house was fine but the housekeeping was not.

At that time Mr. Barker initiated a modification of custody proceeding. Mr. Barker could not afford an attorney at the time and the children were allowed to stay with Laura since the judge ruled that the health hazard was hearsay, notwithstanding expert testimony from a social service professional who said that it was the worst case he had ever seen.

The children stayed with Mr. Barker for 5 months after he initiated modification proceedings since Legal Service attorneys delayed the action that long. Mr. Barker, thinking he was obeying the law kept the children to prevent their return to the former situation. Three days before the District Court appearance on modification Mr. Barker was arrested on custodial interference and arraigned in the 5th Circuit Court of Washington County, Utah.

Mr. Barker did not know how to properly defend himself by bringing evidence before the court to prove that he had no intent of breaking the law. He was found

guilty on charges that added up to 4 years in jail and a 10,000 dollar fine. The judge reduced the sentence with no fine and sentenced him to 2 weeks in jail.

At that particular time Mr. Barker was in process of completing a contract deadline which was the culmination of one year of work. As a result of the incarceration the contract was lost and Mr. Barker was not only out of work but in considerable debt.

A short time later a company bought a mining firm that had gone bankrupt for which Mr. Barker had formerly worked. Mr. Barker accepted a work contract with the new company and worked in that effort for about five months in an attempt to get out of debt, which he was for the most part able to do, until they went into a shutdown mode. At that time in 1990 due to his declining health, general economic conditions and other sundry factors, Mr. Barker started a farming operation. In March of 1991 the Utah Department of Social Services initiated its Order to Appear and Show Cause, in the 6th Judicial District Court, why he should not go to jail for failing to pay child support. Mr. Barker was allowed to purge a contempt charge by the court. Two years later the Department of Human Services, without any notification pursuant to law, charged him for non support in a different domestic relations district court.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

Mr. Barker was erroneously found to be an absconding debtor and incarcerated. After explaining to the court his legal duty to his current (second) family and children Mr. Barker was informed by the court that the first and primary obligation was to pay for the welfare debt of the first (welfare) family and that the others were secondary.

This action was brought about through the efforts of the State of Utah, Department of Human Services utilizing primarily the statutes, or sections thereof, of the "Utah Human Services Code", U.C.A., 62a-1-101 and the "Unified Civil Liability for Support Act", U.C.A., 78-45-1.

The second family is clearly being relegated to "second or third class" citizens with the first "welfare" family having first call on the financial resources of Mr. Barker. In Fact, once a pay order is initially set for the "welfare" family the second or subsequent "nonwelfare" family cannot request its rights for equal protection and support of their father; i.e., the payments to the "welfare" family can never be adjusted downward to meet the growing needs and requirements of the second family. Any additional children will forever be relegated to a second rate subservient position to the first "welfare" family.

Through these statutes Mr. Barker and his children have and are being deprived of many rights and constitutional guarantees. These statutes must be addressed and declared unconstitutional and the rights of Mr. Barker and all of his family restored.

ARGUMENTS OF CASE

POINT I

MR. BARKER WAS DENIED DUE PROCESS OF LAW WHEN THE TRIAL COURT DENIED HIS DEMAND FOR COUNSEL

The trial court knowing that Appellant was indigent and a jail sentence was about to be imposed in this civil case failed to inform Appellant of his right to counsel.

In addition, when Appellant on his own motion demanded counsel it was denied.

Courts have generally upheld that debtors threatened with body execution in civil matters **MUST** be afforded right to counsel, especially if the court knows they are indigent. Robbins v Labar, Transp. Corp. (1984, ND Ill) 599 F Supp 705; Wright v Crawford, (1966, Ky) 401 SW2d 47; Grimes v Miller, (1977, MD NC) 429F Supp 1350.

The Honorable Judge Tibbs, in 1991 **DID PROVIDE APPELLANT WITH COUNSEL** because a jail sentence of contempt was possible in the civil matter; the Honorable Judge Tervort **REFUSED COUNSEL TO APPELLANT** knowing a jail sentence was possible in this matter.

Mr. Barker has been harmed by an abuse of discretion and the trial court did commit error; in that, under Utah Constitution, Article 1, Section 11 Appellant's right to defend and right to counsel has been denied. In addition, Mr. Barker has harmed by an abuse of discretion and the trial court did commit error when, without counsel present, he was held to the same standard as an attorney without having been schooled in the law.

In Hains v Herner, et al 404 U.S. 519 says in part that,

"however unartfully pleaded, are sufficient to call for the opportunity to offer supporting evidence... the pro se compliantant,... we hold to less stringent standards than formal pleading's drafted by lawyers."

The judge stated on the record that he didn't feel the county should have to pay for Appellant's legal expenses, knowing that Mr. Barker was indigent, constituting an abuse of discretion malicious process, and malicious prosecution. Due process of law has been restricted as a result of Appellant not being able to afford an attorney in his

first appeal by right.

POINT II

**MR. BARKER WAS DENIED DUE PROCESS OF LAW
BY STATE OF UTAH, DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN
SERVICES WHEN NOT NOTICED HIS CHILDREN
WERE ON STATE WELFARE.**

Appellant was not given due process of law in violation of Utah Constitution, Article 1, Section 7, which says:

"No person shall be deprived of life, liberty or property, without due process of law."

Mr. Barker was not noticed by the Utah State Department of Human Services that his children were on welfare, from 1991 to 1993, or at any other time.

The Department of Human Services and the Office of Recovery Services have violated U.C.A., 63-46b-3 which says:

"...all adjudicative proceedings shall be commenced by...a notice of agency action...."

That agency did not follow administrative due process of law, since Appellant was not notified that Appellant's children were receiving public assistance from this agency pursuant to U.C.A., 63-46b-3, and the lower court was told so on the record. There is no evidence on the record of any notice.

Appellant's due process was further hampered by the fact that the Office of Recovery Services was in violation of Utah Law. U.C.A., 62A-11-102 (1), says:

"There is created within the department the Office of Recovery Services which has the powers and duties provided by law."

That law was passed in 1988. Department is defined in U.C.A., 62A-1-104 (1)

(b), and says: "Department" means the Department of Human Services established in 1990 pursuant to U.C.A., 62A-1-102.

Further evidence of that fact is seen in U.C.A., 62A-1-105 (3) (c), which says,

"The following offices are created within the Department of Human Services: the Office of Recovery Services.",

wherein the Office of Recovery Services was created within the Utah Department of Human Services in 1993.

In effect the State of Utah Department of Human Services, which was created in 1990, created within itself, in 1988, the Office of Recovery Services. The Department could not have created within itself anything if said Department did not exist. In otherwords, at the time of this action, there did not exist an Office of Recovery Services within the Department presenting absurdity of law. Even colorable law will not tolerate absurdity of law. Perhaps that is why appellatant never received a notice.

POINT III

**MR. BARKER WAS DENIED DUE PROCESS OF LAW
WHEN THE TRIAL COURT REFUSED AND
CONTINUES TO REFUSE TO ACT UPON A MOTION
FOR RELIEF OF JUDGEMENT.**

The Appellant was denied due process of law since a Motion for Relief of Judgment and Order pursuant to Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 60 (b) was made to the lower court and has never been acted upon. Mr. Barker's Response to Objection to Defendant's Motion for Relief of Judgment and Order, dated 27 August 1993, further clarifies that Motion for Relief but, again, the lower court has refused to view, or consider the matter still before it.

POINT IV

MR. BARKER WAS INCARCERATED ON 30 JUNE 1993 BY THE STATE OF UTAH IN VIOLATION OF UTAH CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES WHICH CONFLICT WITH THE UNIFORM CIVIL LIABILITIES FOR SUPPORT ACT, U.C.A., 78-45 *ET SEQ.*

Mr. Barker is being placed in the middle of a Utah Constitutional and statutory conflict between U.C.A., 78-45 and U.C.A., 34-34, and other constitutional citations as explained below.

U.C.A., 78-45-7.5 (5) (c), says:

"Historical and current earnings shall be used to determine whether an unemployment or overemployment situation exists.";

U.C.A., 78-45-7.5 (7) (a) says:

"...finding made that the parent is voluntarily unemployed or underemployed.";

and U.C.A., 78-45-7.5 (7) (b) says:

"...income shall be based upon employment potential and probable earnings as derived from work history, occupation qualifications and prevailing earnings for person of similar backgrounds in the community."

These statutes are in direct conflict and in violation of the Utah Right to Work Law, U.C.A., 34-34-1. U.C.A., 34-34-2, says:

"... and further, that the right to live includes the right to work. The exercise of the right to work must be protected and maintained free from undue restraints and coercion."

U.C.A., 34-34-6 mandates that:

"...any other type of association engaging in..., or other conduct, a purpose of which is to compel or force any other person, ...to violate any provision of this chapter shall be guilty of illegal conduct contrary to

public policy...."

The court is illegally, through U.C.A., 78-45 "guidelines", attempting to force appellant into obtaining other employment simply because his farming occupation, at this point in time, 1) is not making what the State of Utah says is enough money; 2) not what the State of Utah, Department of Human Services deems appropriate for Appellant's past formal education; and 3) is coercing him from occupational change based on necessity. The State of Utah is by the very definition coercing and preventing Appellant from exercising "the right to work" free of "undue restraints and coercion" and is direct violation of U.C.A., 34-34-6.

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