1993

Laura Beth Barker, and the State of Utah, Department of Human Services v. Michael Robert Barker : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Appellant makes sixteen separate arguments against the trial court and Appellee. For a majority of these arguments, the cases, statutes and constitutional provisions cited by Appellant are irrelevant and/or misinterpreted. Furthermore, an additional number of his arguments are totally unsound and frivolous in that they are not based upon any evidence or authority.

Appellant has a fundamental misunderstanding of the State child support enforcement laws and procedures. Appellee is statutorily authorized by law to enforce Appellant's child support obligation and the lower court's Findings of Fact and Order are consistent with this statutory framework.

Additionally, Appellant challenges the contempt order of the lower court on the basis that he was entitled to legal counsel and none was appointed to him prior to incarceration. The contempt order of the court was civil in nature and so the challenge of the Appellant is without merit. Furthermore, even if there is merit, the issue is now moot.

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

APPELLEE IS STATUTORILY AUTHORIZED TO DIRECTLY COLLECT FROM AN OBLIGOR MONIES EXPENDED THROUGH PUBLIC ASSISTANCE PROVIDED FOR DEPENDENT CHILDREN.

The points in Appellant's Brief clearly indicate that Appellant has a fundamental misunderstanding of the State's child support enforcement laws and procedure.

The Office of Recovery Services is statutorily authorized to obtain and enforce child support orders in support actions. Appellant claims that the Utah Department of Human Services cannot be subrogated to Ms. McGillivray's rights against Appellant on unpaid support payments. Specifically, Appellant asserts that since he never contracted with the Department of Human Services, the State is illegally attempting to force him into a welfare contract. (Appellant's Brief at 25).

This claim by Appellant that a contract with the State is a necessary prerequisite for the State to collect unpaid child support is contrary to the statutory authority which enables the Office of Recovery Services to obtain and enforce child support orders in support action. This is especially true when Aid to Families with Dependent Children ("AFDC") has been provided for the children, Utah Code Ann. § 62A-11-106 (Supp. 1994), Utah Code Ann. § 62A-11-304.2(3) (Supp. 1994), Utah Code Ann. § 78-45-9(1)(a) (Supp. 1994) provides:

The obligee may enforce his right of support against the obligor and the office may proceed...on behalf of the Department of

Human Services...to enforce the right to
recovery public assistance...

In Bartholomew v. Bartholomew, 548 P.2d 238 (Utah 1976), the court held that where a divorced wife and her four children were receiving public assistance, it was proper for the Department of Social Services to intervene on her behalf in an action to force her ex-husband to make unpaid child support payments. Id. at 241.

The policy and the law is...to simplify and expedite procedure and to avoid multiplicity of lawsuits. The right of children to support and the parental duty to provide it, supplemented by the State when necessary, gives rise to a mutual interest in [the problem of child support collection]...[i]t was [therefore] appropriate for the State to join as an intervenor in this action. Id.

If a custodial parent has received AFDC for the child, the Office of Recovery Services has another separate, statutory interest in status as a party in such proceedings, i.e. as an assignee of the custodians right to child support for operation of law through execution of an actual assignment. Utah Code Ann. § 78-45-9(1)(a), Utah Code Ann. § 62A-11-303(3) (1992).

Appellant also claimed that he and Appellee contracted to allow payment in kind and therefore the State had no authority to provide public assistance to his children in the first place, because it "forced" him into the "welfare contract." (Appellant's Brief at p. 25-26). Appellant's claim, however, rises from his misunderstanding of the purpose of the State child support enforcement laws. Utah Code Ann. §62A-9-114(1) (Supp. 1994) provides:

Aid to Families with Dependent Children may be provided to families and children in accordance with Title IV-A of the Social Security Act and applicable federal regulations.

A child who is not financially supported by his or her natural parents is instead supported by federal and state taxpayers through jointly funded public assistance programs such as AFDC. Utah Code Ann. § 62A-11-302 (1992).

Furthermore, even if Appellant and Ms. McGillivray did agree to such a contract, Utah Code Ann. § 62A-11-106(2) provides:

[n]o agreement between an obligee and an obligor, either relieving an obligation or purporting to settle past, present, or future obligations either as a settlement or prepayment, reduces or terminates the right of the office to recover from that obligor on the behalf of the Department for public assistance provided...

Given the Appellee's clear authority to recover the public assistance provided for his children, the trial court's Judgment and Order for the Appellee is clearly based in solid statutory authority.

The Appellant claims that the Appellee violated his due process rights by failing to notify him that his children were receiving public assistance. (Appellant's Brief at p. 6-7). Contrary to this claim, Appellee was under no duty to notify Appellant of this situation. Appellant cites § 63-46b-3 of the Utah Code for this alleged duty to notify. This provision of the law outlines the requirement for commencement of adjudicative proceedings for State agencies under the Administrative Procedures Act. Appellant's argument ignores the fact that there

was no adjudicative proceeding with respect to the determination of public assistance eligibility for his children and notice of this matter. Furthermore, even if there was an adjudicative proceeding this proceeding would be exempted by Utah Code Ann. § 63-46b-1(2)(1) which states:

This chapter [63-46b-1 et seq.] does not govern: the initial determination of any persons eligibility for government of public assistance benefits.

Appellant cites no other authority for his argument.

Furthermore, generally regarding Appellant's due process arguments, as found by the trial court, the Appellant was afforded due process every time he was before the court. (R.724). Each time the State sought judgment against the Appellant, he was given notice of the State's claim and an opportunity to present his arguments in court. (R.788 p. 110). Therefore, Appellant's claim that he was denied due process is unfounded.

POINT II.

THE TRIAL COURT MADE SPECIFIC FINDINGS AND PROPERLY DISMISSED APPELLANT'S PETITION TO MODIFY.

The lower court considered Appellant's Counterclaim for Abuse of Process and Harassment and Petition for Change of Circumstances as a combined Petition to Modify. (R.788 p. 8-9). In this combined Petition to Modify, Appellant's arguments give rise to the issues of violation of his constitutional right to work, involuntary servitude, whether he is voluntarily underemployed, and the imputation of income to him and the

disallowance of a change in circumstances.

Appellant contends that Utah Code Ann. § 78-45-7.5 is in violation of the Utah Right to Work law, Utah State Constitution and the U.S. Constitution. In part, Appellant asserts that by using his "historical and current earnings" to determine whether he was voluntarily unemployed, the trial court violated his constitutionally protected right to work in an occupation of his choosing. (Appellant's Brief at p. 10-11), See Utah Code Ann. §§ 78-45-7.5(5)(c), (7)(a), (7)(b); Utah Code Ann. § 34-34-2, -6.

There is nothing in either the U.S. Constitution or the Utah Constitution which says that Appellant can avoid his child support obligation. Appellant has a right to work, however, he also has a child support obligation for his and Ms. McGillivray's five children. If he chooses to voluntarily quit a job or voluntarily work at a job with lesser pay, there is nothing unconstitutional about a court requiring him to support his children. None of his constitutional or state statutory citations are otherwise persuasive. Therefore, the trial court properly ruled that his constitutional arguments were unfounded.

Furthermore, the trial court correctly determined that Appellant was intentionally underemployed for the purpose of avoiding child support obligations and therefore subject to imputation of income. In computing gross income, "[h]istorical and current earnings shall be used to determine whether an underemployment or overemployment situation exists." Utah Code Ann. § 78-45-7.5(5)(c) (Supp. 1994). Based upon Appellant's

testimony concerning his educational training, work history and the discrepancy between his past and his current earnings, the trial court properly found Appellant to be voluntarily underemployed. (R.788 p. 34-50). (R.725). While Appellant argues that the trial court abused its discretion in finding Appellant to be intentionally underemployed, no support exists in the record for such an argument.

In finding the Appellant to be intentionally underemployed for the purposes of avoiding child support payments, the trial court has the statutory authority to impute income to Appellant. Utah Code Ann. § 78-45-7.5(7)(a). Pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 78-45-7.5(7)(b),

[i]f income is imputed to a parent, the income shall be based upon employment potential and probable earnings as derived from work history, occupational qualifications and prevailing earnings for persons of similar backgrounds in the community.

In applying these statutory factors to determine the amount of income to be imputed to Appellant, the trial court properly found Appellant to have an earning capacity of \$2,000.00 per month. (R.788 p. 34-50). (R.725).

In the case of Hill v. Hill, 229 Utah Adv. Rep. 46 (Utah Ct. App. 1993), the court held that the trial court did not abuse its discretion in not making specific findings of fact that ex-husband was underemployed since he had submitted at trial to imputation of income and because his job history and current employment options supported the imputation of an amount higher

than the ex-husband's current salary. In the instant case, Appellant did not submit to imputation of income, but his job history and current employment situation supports the imputation of income.

Additionally, the trial court was within its discretion to not consider Appellant's situation a material change in circumstances for purposes of downward modification of his award. Appellant did not demonstrate that a material change in circumstances had occurred since the divorce. As a matter of fact, his situation had improved. At the time of the divorce, he was earning \$1,500.00 per month (R.343, R.788 p. 29, 48-49) and the evidence at the hearing indicates he is capable of earning \$2,000.00 per month. (R.788 p. 48-49). In the case of Grover v. Grover, 839 P.2d 871, 873 (Utah Ct. App. 1992), the court held that a child support order can only be modified based upon a showing of a material change in circumstances.

As a basis for his argument that the trial court failed to make specific and detailed findings, Appellant relies upon Ostler v. Ostler, 789 P.2d 713 (Utah Ct. App. 1990). His reliance, however, is misplaced. In Ostler the court held that the failure of the trial court to enter specific findings on each of the statutory factors set forth in Utah Code Ann. § 78-45-7 for an award of prospective support after a material change of circumstances is generally reversible error. Id. at 715. In the instant case the trial court properly found no change in circumstances to justify modification of the existing support

award, Ostler was based upon a modification of a prior award after the determination that a material change of circumstances had occurred. Ostler v. Ostler, 789 P.2d at 715.

Appellant also makes an argument that he is entitled to relief from retroactively accumulated support. This argument is without merit as a Petition to Modify applies to prospective support. Utah Code Ann. § 78-45-7(2), see Grover v. Grover, 839 P.2d at 873).

Appellant makes another argument that the trial court should have granted his Petition to Modify due to his obligations to his "current" family, Specifically, Appellant argues that the trial court erred in concluding that Appellant's obligation to support his natural children of this action is primary to his obligation to support his natural children of a subsequent common law marriage. (R.726). However, Utah Code Ann. § 78-45-7.2(5) (Supp. 1994) provides:

[i]n a proceeding to modify the existing award, consideration of natural or adopted children other than those common to both parties may be applied to mitigate an increase in the award, but may not be applied to justify a decrease in the award. (emphasis added).

Again, Appellant's argument is not supported by statutory authority.

POINT III.

THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY RULED ON AND DENIED APPELLANT'S MOTION FOR RELIEF FROM JUDGMENT AND ORDER.

Appellant argues that his due process rights were violated because the trial court failed to rule on his Motion for Relief

from Judgment and Order. This argument ignores the fact that the trial court did issue a Judgment and Order in response to Appellant's Motion on August 19, 1993. (R.749-751). The trial court denied Appellant's request for court appointed counsel, for a new trial, and for relief from judgment and order dated July 16, 1993. (R.749-751).

POINT IV.

THE TRIAL COURT'S ORDER DOES NOT REVERSE A PRIOR 1991 ORDER.

Appellant argues that the trial court's order holding Appellant in contempt for non-payment of child support overturns the prior 1991 order in which Appellant was allowed to purge himself. The unpaid child support sought for the State in 1991 was instigated to recovery unpaid support prior to the dates set forth in the instant case before the lower court. (R.788 p. 21). The previous judgment entered on April 29, 1991 does not in any way conflict or overturn the instant judgment for unpaid support for the period March 1991 through January 1993.

POINT V.

APPELLANT'S ARGUMENT THAT THE COURT HAS NO JURISDICTION OVER HIM IS RES JUDICATA.

Appellant has continuously argued that the trial court does not have jurisdiction over him. This issue was litigated before Judge Tibbs in the divorce action and thus is now res judicata. Specifically, in the trial court's findings of fact concerning Appellant's and Ms. McGillivray's divorce decree dated June 8, 1987, Judge Tibbs specifically found that the court has

jurisdiction over Appellant in this matter. (R.330-331). Furthermore, on January 5, 1989, Judge Tibbs concluded in a ruling on a previous Order to Show Cause brought by the State that the court retains jurisdiction over Appellant in this matter. (R.532). Thus, in this case, res judicata bars Appellant from contesting the court's jurisdiction as the issue has been previously litigated and ruled upon. See State v. V.G.P., 845 P.2d 944, 946 (Utah Ct. App. 1992) holding that res judicata bars defendant from claiming non-paternity because the court had previously entered a decree of paternity.

POINT VI.

APPELLANT'S CONTEMPT WAS IN THE NATURE OF CIVIL CONTEMPT AND HE THEREFORE WAS NOT ENTITLED TO COUNSEL PRIOR TO INCARCERATION, HOWEVER, EVEN IF THIS COURT FINDS THAT HE WAS ENTITLED TO COUNSEL, THIS ISSUE IS NOW MOOT.

Appellant contends that while knowing he was indigent, the trial court both failed to inform him of his right to counsel and further, refused to grant his request for the same. (Appellant's Brief at p. 4). Contempt of court is an amorphous contempt and takes many forms and serves many purposes. Within contempt law there are two distinct forms of contempt - civil and criminal - which serve two equally distinct purposes. Further, within civil and criminal contempt there are two further refinements - direct or indirect - which greatly effect the contemnor's due process hearing rights.²

²If the contempt is direct, it is committed in the presence of the judge and may be punished summarily without the need for a hearing. However, if the contempt is indirect, it is committed

Whether it be civil or criminal, in a contempt proceeding the plaintiff must allege, that in contempt of court, the defendant wilfully disobeyed an order of the court and must make a prayer that the defendant be punished therefor. In this sense, it is not the fact of punishment, but rather its character and purpose that serves to distinguish between civil and criminal contempt. See Gompers v. Buck Stove & Range, 221 U.S. 418, 441 (1911); Von Hake v. Thomas, 759 P.2d 1162, 1168 (Utah 1988); 3 Charles Wright, Federal Practice And Procedure § 704 (1982). If it is for civil contempt, the punishment of the court is remedial and for the benefit of the complainant. Gompers, 221 U.S. at 441; Hicks ex rel. Feiock v. Feiock, 485 U.S. 624 (1988); Von Hake, 759 P.2d at 1168. But, if it is for criminal contempt, the sentence is punitive - to vindicate the court - and is limited to imprisonment for a definite period of time. Gompers at 441-442; Von Hake at 1168.

Thus, imprisonment for civil contempt is ordered not to vindicate the judge, but rather because the defendant refused to

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